

## Korespondensi : Transportation Mode

The screenshot displays the submission interface for article #33158 on the EJournals3.undip.ac.id website. The page is divided into several sections: Summary, Submission, Status, Peer Review, and a right-hand sidebar with navigation links and user information.

**Summary**

**Submission**

Authors	Michdarul Mizwar, Dewi Astiti, Arif Sabta Aji, Tri Siswati
Title	TRANSPORTATION MODE CHOICE AND OBESITY: A CROSS-SECTIONAL STUDY AT SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL FEMALE STUDENT IN YOGYAKARTA, INDONESIA
Original file	33158-72591-1-SM.doc 2022-01-29
Supp. files	33158-72595-1-SP.pdf 2022-01-29
Submitter	Tri Siswati Siswati
Date submitted	January 29, 2022 - 02:32 PM
Section	Articles
Editor	Deny Fitranti, S.Gz, M.Si.
Abstract Views	0

**Status**

Status	Published Vol 11, No 2 (2022): April
Initiated	2022-04-28

**Peer Review**

**Round 1**

Review Version	33158-72596-2-RV.doc 2022-03-05
Reviewed	2022-03-05
Revised	2022-04-03
Revised file	None

**Editor Decision**

Decision	Accept Submission 2022-04-12
Editor/Autor Email Record	2022-04-12
Editor Version	33158-73046-1-ED.doc 2022-04-07
Editor Version	33158-73046-2-ED.doc 2022-04-07
Editor Version	33158-74154-1-ED.doc 2022-04-08

**Right Sidebar**

- S3 Sinta Accredited
- Information for Author
  - Author Guidelines
  - Article Template
  - New Submissions
  - Focus and Scope
  - Guidance for Submission
  - Contact
- Open Journal Systems
- User
  - You are logged in as... triswati\_1503
  - My Journals
  - My Profile
  - Log Out
- Notifications
  - View (18 new)
  - Manage

# TRANSPORTATION MODE CHOICE AND OBESITY: A CROSS-SECTIONAL STUDY AT SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL FEMALE STUDENT IN YOGYAKARTA, INDONESIA

## ABSTRACT

**Background:** The prevalence of obesity has increased worldwide. Indonesia has also experienced a similar rising trend in obesity, especially in adolescents. **The current phenomena is shifting mode of transportation from active to passive.**

**Objective:** This study aims to determine the correlation between transportation mode and obesity in high school adolescents in Yogyakarta, Indonesia.

**Methods:** A cross-sectional study was created and a total of 238 subjects of this study which were adolescent girls in class XI from all high schools/equivalents in Bantul was recruited. Data were collected in February-May 2017. Data characteristics, duration and mode of transportation were collected during the study a structured questionnaire. In addition, body mass index measurement was assessed to determine obesity status of female students. A logistic regression analysis was performed using SPSS version 20.0.

**Results:** Subjects who used passive transportation mode had a risk of having obesity (OR 5.63, 95% CI: 1.71-8.52). Furthermore, passive transport duration >15 minutes increased the risk of obesity (OR 2.51, 95% CI: 1.07-5.99), while active transport >15 minutes was a protective factor (OR: 0.21 95% CI: 0.19-0.89).

**Conclusions:** There are correlation between the type and duration of the transportation mode used with obesity in adolescent girls.

**Keywords:** Obesity; transportation; adolescent girls; high school students; Indonesia

**Comment [MOU1]:** Harap dibaca author guidelines JNC.

Sesuaikan dengan format abstrak JNC:  
Latar belakang (*Background*)  
Tujuan (*Objective*)  
Metode (*Methods*)  
Hasil (*Results*)  
Simpulan (*Conclusion*)

Sudah diperbaiki

**Comment [MOU2]:** Bukan 'aims' tapi 'objectives'. Harap dibaca author guidelines JNC

Sudah diperbaiki

**Comment [MOU3]:** Harap dibaca author guidelines JNC untuk penulisan Keywords. Perhatikan huruf besar dan kecil, tanda baca (gunakan ; bukan ,)

Sudah diperbaiki

## BACKGROUND

The prevalence of obesity has shown an increasing trend worldwide. It was reported that in 2020 the prevalence of adult overweight (BMI>25) and obesity (BMI>30) reached more than 2 billion (39% of adult global population) and 600 million respectively.<sup>1</sup> In Indonesia, based on the Basic Health Research (Riskesdas) surveys, the prevalence of central obesity at the age of 15 years and over in Indonesia continues to increase from year to year; where the obesity prevalence in 2007, 2013 and 2018 were 18.8%<sup>2</sup>, 26.6%<sup>3</sup> and 31%<sup>4</sup>, respectively. While the prevalence of obesity at age ≥15 years in Yogyakarta in 2007, 2013 and 2018 were 18,3%<sup>5</sup>, 26,6%<sup>6</sup>, and 32,4%<sup>7</sup> respectively.

**Comment [i-[4]:** Data lama diganti  
Sudah diperbaiki

Overweight and obesity have increased the burden of public health problems<sup>8</sup>. Consistently, overweight and obesity have increased the risk of diabetes mellitus, cardiovascular disease, stroke and cancer<sup>9,10</sup>. Therefore, the increasing prevalence of obesity has a significant effect on public health problems and the nation's economic development<sup>11</sup>. On the other hand, obesity is a preventable disease<sup>12</sup> through improving healthy living behaviour, including having adequate physical activity<sup>13,14</sup>.

**Comment [i-[5]:** Komparasi data  
Sudah diperbaiki

Adequate physical activity is important for maintaining ideal body weight<sup>15</sup>, improves child's cognitive function and performance at school<sup>14</sup>, improve physical fitness and build up muscle mass<sup>16</sup>, provide greater opportunities for a healthy life and having a job in the future, and reduce the risk of physical and psychosocial comorbidities in latter age<sup>17</sup>. School-age children/adolescents (12-18 years) have various alternatives to support their mobilization from home to school or vice versa. In addition, trend analysis shows that technological, economic and social development affects people physical activity, creating a shift in the utilization of active transportation modes, such as walking or cycling, to passive transportation, such as riding a motorbike or car. Many studies showed that passive transportation associated with high of body fat<sup>18</sup> and obesity<sup>19</sup>.

The shift in the transportation modes of choice has emerged in several countries such as the United States<sup>13,14</sup>, California<sup>15</sup>, and several other countries, including Indonesia. But, In Indonesia the report of student using mode transportation is still very rare. In Bogor in 2018 reported that only 10% student chose to walk and 15% used public transportation when going school<sup>20</sup>. According to our observation, In Yogyakarta adolescents or students can use motor vehicles freely because there is no

**Comment [i-[6]:** Data di Indonesia  
Sudah diperbaiki

prohibition nor bus school available, So far the phenomena of using active transportation was rare although close distance between school and their home.

As the prevalence of overweight and obesity in Indonesia rises, active transportation is a suitable strategy to eradicate obesity, improve physical fitness, build good habits and cheap transportation<sup>18,21</sup>. Several studies have shown that active transportation is associated with increased opportunities for physical activity, increased energy expenditure and improved health status<sup>8</sup>. This study aims to determine the relationship between moda transportation and obesity in high school adolescents in Yogyakarta, Indonesia.

## METHOD

### Study Design

This study was a cross-sectional study in Bantul, was a district with a high prevalence of obese women in DI Yogyakarta. Random class was carried out with all female students in class XI from all high schools/equivalent, both public and private schools as study population. In total, there were 5.577 female students<sup>22</sup>. The number of samples was determined by the Lemeshow formula<sup>23</sup> (Fig 1), with the proportion of female obesity on was set at 17.7%<sup>6</sup>. In the end, a total of 238 female students was included in this study. The sample formula was as detail in Figure 1.

$$n = \frac{N Z^2_{1-\alpha/2} P (1-P)}{(N-1) d^2 + Z^2_{1-\alpha/2} P (1-P)}$$

Fig 1. Sample formula

### Data Collection

The 238 participants origin from 27 senior high school were selected using the probability proportional to size sampling (PPS) technique. The variable of interest includes the type of transportation mode (active transportation, e.g., bicycles, or passive transportation, e.g., cars, motorbikes, and public transportation), the duration of the trip to/from home to school ( $\leq$

**Comment [MOU7]:** Gap penelitian ini perlu dipertajam, dengan cara:  
- Tambahkan evidence base tentang Potret angka/persentase students yang menggunakan active dan passive transportation  
- Kemudian kaitkan angka/persentase tsb dengan potret/kecenderungan angka/persentase obesitas pada students  
- Sudah

**Comment [i-[8]:** The reason u choose Bantul as a representative Jogjakarta have to include in background..because Jogjakarta consist of Yogyakarta, sleman, kulonprogo..?  
Sudah

**Comment [MOU9]:** Tuliskan rumus dan perhitungannya disini  
Sudah

**Comment [i-[10]:** Jika di sini tertulis 17.7%...mengapa di background mencapai 30% an?  
Sudah diberi penjelasan Female obesity di bantul mnrt Riskesdas 2013

**Comment [i-[11]:** 238 ini berasal dari berapa sekolah? Bisa ditambahkan  
Sudah

15 and >15 minutes)<sup>24</sup>, and obesity status by calculating BMI (Obese= z-score >2 SD; Not obese= z-score  $\leq$  2 SD)<sup>25</sup>. Respondent's characteristics and transportation data were collected using a structured questionnaire. In addition, nutritional status data were observed using a Camry EB9003 digital weight scale with an accuracy of 0.1 kg and microtoise with an accuracy of 1 mm. Data were collected in February-May 2017. Data was noemal distribution tested using Kolmogorov-Smirnov. Moreover, normal categoric data analysis to determine the correlation of transportation modes and nutritional status was performed by employing a logistic regression test using SPSS software.

### ***Ethical Clearance***

This study has obtained ethical approval from the Ethical Committee of Alma Ata University (No. KE/AA/II/53/E.C./2017). All participants of the study provided written informed consent prior to enrollment in the study.

## **RESULTS**

### ***Subjects Characteristics***

The number of subjects aged 15-16 years and 17-18 years is equal (50%). Most of the subjects come from families where fathers have middle school education (39.1%) and mothers with primary education (37.9%). In addition, most fathers work as private-sector workers or self-employed (39.9%) and mothers as housewives (48.7%) (Table 1).

### ***Obesity and Transportation Mode Used by Study Participants***

Obesity prevalence and transportation mode and duration were showed in Table 2. The prevalence of obesity in adolescent girls in this study was 18.8%. The study of participants who used active and passive transportation was active (47.5%) and passive (52.5%). The transportation duration of the students was mostly had passive mode (52.9%).

### ***Correlation between transportation mode with obesity in adolescent***

The results of the data analysis found that participants who used passive transportation had a risk of obesity of 5.63 or equal to 6 times higher that students who had

**Comment [MOU12]:** Jelaskan lebih rinci analisis statistiknya.

Apakah data normal atau tidak?  
Sudah

Bagaimana menguji normalitas datanya?

sudah

Data dipresentasikan dengan cara apa (kategorik dan numerik)?

Sudah

Bagaimana covariat data yang lain?

Saran: menambahkan uji multivariat dengan mengontrol variable yang berpotensi menjadi pengganggu

Kelemahan penelitian tidak dilakukan analisis multivariate (raw data rusak)

active transportation mode. Study participants with passive transport duration >15 minutes were 2.5 times more likely to have obesity ( $p=0,027$ ; OR (CI 95%) = 2.5 (1.1-5.9)). On the other hand, having active transport >15 minutes is a significant protective factor for obesity ( $p=0,041$ ; OR (CI 95%) = 0.2 (0.2-0.9)) (Table 3).

## DISCUSSION

Adolescence (15 to 20 years) is one of the stages of growth and consolidation of development.<sup>26</sup> At this stage, they characterized by shifting of developmental and behavioural from childhood to have more mature and behavioural independence<sup>27</sup>. However, in most cases, someone's behaviour during adolescence tends to persist in adulthood, which might affect their health status throughout their lives<sup>28</sup>. Currently, the number of adolescents in Indonesia is approximately 30% of the total population<sup>29</sup>. Therefore, the health status of Indonesian people in the future depends on adolescents' health behaviour today<sup>30</sup>. Moreover, unhealthy behaviour and wrong eating patterns will become a state burden concerning increasing the prevalence of non-communicable diseases<sup>17,28</sup>. In this study, most adolescents came from parents with secondary and tertiary education, with the father's occupation being mostly formal workers. These are structural factors related to health outcomes, including the health of family members<sup>31</sup>. In addition, parents who are highly educated will have the opportunity to get better jobs with adequate income so that they are able to provide better facilities to their children<sup>31,32</sup>.

In this study, 18.8% of adolescent girls were obese. This prevalence is lower than the results of the Riskesdas survey in Indonesia in 2018, which was 31%. However, obesity in adolescents needs to be considered and prevented, considering the increasing trends. Obesity in adolescence has a higher risk to the early development of non-communicable diseases, such as glucose intolerance, cardiovascular disease, stroke, kidney disease and its

**Comment [i-[13]:** Ada informasi yang tidak disampaikan..mengapa pembahasan tidak mencoba mengkaitkan moda transportasi dengan aktivitas fisik? Penggunaan moda transportasi 15 menit itu apakah bisa disetarakan dengan aktivitas fisik rendah? Bagaimana dengan prinsip obesitas dan sedentary life style?

dibawah

**Comment [i-[14]:** Hasil kesimpulan penelitian ini jangan2 karena memang awalnya para responden sudah obesitas dahulu?

Penelitian cross sectional sehingga tidak mengamati kondisi sebelumnya

Ketika hanya berpijak pada durasi 15 menit/ hari? Apakah itu relevan untuk disandingkan dengan penyebab obesitas?

Dibawah

complications<sup>9,10</sup>. Obesity in adolescent girls can also develop into glucose intolerance at childbearing age and pregnancy<sup>33</sup>.

Transportation mode to school is related to vehicle ownership, costs, distance and travel time, comfort, taste, or lifestyle. Teenagers' choice to use active transportation to school can help control their ideal body weight, increase energy expenditure, improve physical fitness<sup>3,11,15</sup>, reduce sources of pollutants<sup>33</sup>, and save fuel costs and health care costs due to obesity due to lack of physical activity<sup>34</sup>.

The results of this study found that there was a relationship between passive transportation and obesity in adolescents, with a risk of 5.63 times. In addition, the duration of passive **transportation >15 minutes** increases the risk of obesity by 2.53 times. On the other hand, a female adolescent who chooses active transportation to school with a duration of > 15 minutes will be protected from the risk of **obesity**. Pathway of active transport with lower risk of obesity and body fat composition as a small increases of level daily physical activity<sup>35</sup>. Physical activity potentially increases by an active mode transportation. Study in low-middle income countries showed that active transport for 5 minutes only increment the accumulative of physical activity and lowering risk of obesity<sup>18</sup>.

This study finding is in line with research in 12 countries that active transportation were more at risk of developing obesity<sup>35</sup>. Another study in Sweden that looked at the relationship between modes of transport for work and obesity found that the use of motorized transport >15 minutes was associated with obesity<sup>24</sup>. On the other hand, active transportation from home to school and vice versa is recommended to increase energy expenditure for female adolescents as early prevention to obesity. This study includes all female adolescents in high school/equivalent in **Bantul** to represent the diversity of characteristics. With a large number of subjects, this study allows suppressing bias. However, the cross-sectional study design has

**Comment [i-[15]:** How about the intake?

Menjadi kelemahan penelitian karena tidak diteliti

**Comment [MOU16]:** Pembahasan akan lebih menarik ketika memasukkan proses atau mechanism secara komprehensif bagaimana aktivitas bertransportasi dapat mempengaruhi kejadian obesitas. Libatkan juga variable lain yang mungkin dapat mempengaruhi obesitas. Tolong ditambahkan

Sudah

**Comment [i-[17]:** menpa

a weakness in making a causal inference. Besides that, this study does not observed variables such as intake, physical activity, genetics and others related with obesity.

**Comment [MOU18]:** Tambahkan limitations pada studi ini ttg variable lain yang tidak diambil dalam penelitian ini yang variable tsb sangat mungkin mempengaruhi kejadian obesitas pada students (e.g., asupan, uang saku, aktivitas, dll). Jelaskan juga bagaimana variable tersebut dapat mengganggu (bias) pada hasil penelitian ini

Sudah

## CONCLUSION

The use of passive transportation mode is associated with an increased risk of obesity. In addition, the transportation duration to school is also associated with an increased risk of obesity. Currently, a new student admission are based on zonation, so a specific policy could be considered in the mode and duration transportation in the students to prevent an increasing obesity prevalence in Yogyakarta, of course this also need support by safe cycling and pedestrian traffics for students.

**Comment [i-[19]:** Ketika memasukkan mengenai kebijakan..sebaiknya pada pendahuluan juga disampaikan mengenai kebijakan apa yang sudah ada mengenai moda transportasi

## ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We want to thank the Dinas Pendidikan dan Olahraga Kabupaten Bantul, all high school/equivalent in Bantul, and all respondents who have participated in this research.

## CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest.

och J, Neal EA, Schlott MJ, Garcia-Shelton YL, Chan MF, Weaver KE, et al. Serum zinc and protein levels: lack of a correlation in hospitalized patients with AIDS. *Nutrition*. 1996; 12(7-8): 511-4.

## REREFENCES

1. Mansia A. Obesity and Diabetes. 2020. available at <https://www.a-mansia.com/obesity-and-diabetes-in-the-world/#:~:text=Worldwide downloaded on 8<sup>th</sup> April 2022>.
2. Kemenkes RI. *Riset Kesehatan Dasar Tahun 2007*. 2007. Jakarta, Indonesia.
3. Kemenkes RI. *Riset Kesehatan Dasar Tahun 2013*. 2013. Jakarta, Indonesia.
4. Kemenkes RI. *Riset Kesehatan Dasar Tahun 2018*. 2018. Jakarta, Indonesia.
5. Kemenkes RI. *Laporan Hasil Riset Kesehatan Dasar (Riskesdas) Provinsi Di Yogyakarta Tahun 2007*. 2007. Jakarta, Indonesia.
6. Kemenkes RI. *Laporan Hasil Riset Kesehatan Dasar (Riskesdas) Provinsi Di Yogyakarta Tahun 2013*. Jakarta. Indonesia
7. Kemenkes RI. *Laporan Hasil Riset Kesehatan Dasar (Riskesdas) Provinsi Di Yogyakarta Tahun 2018*. 2018. Jakarta, Indonesia.
8. Habinger, J. G. *et al*. Active transportation and obesity indicators in adults from latin



9. america: Elans multi-country study. *Int. J. Environ. Res. Public Health*. 2020; 17:1–12
9. Abdelaal, M., le Roux, C. W. & Docherty, N. G. Morbidity and mortality associated with obesity. *Ann. Transl. Med.* 2017; 5: 1–12.
10. Piernas, C. *et al.* Obesity, non-communicable disease (NCD) risk factors and dietary factors among Chinese school-aged children. *Asia Pac. J. Clin. Nutr.* 2016;25:826–840
11. Agha, M. & Agha, R. The rising prevalence of obesity: impact on public health. *Int. J. Surg. Oncol.* 2017. 2, e19
12. WHO. Obesity and Overweight. 2021. Available at <https://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/obesity-and-overweight> downloaded on 8<sup>th</sup> April 2022.
13. González, K., Fuentes, J. & Márquez, J. L. Physical inactivity, sedentary behavior and chronic diseases. *Korean J. Fam. Med.* 2017; 38: 111–115
14. Martin, A. *et al.* Physical activity, diet and other behavioural interventions for improving cognition and school achievement in children and adolescents with obesity or overweight (Review). *Cochrane Database Syst. Rev. Phys.* 2018. doi:10.1002/14651858.CD009728.
15. Swift DL, McGee JE, Earnest CP, Carlisle E, Nygard M, Johannsen NM. The Effects of Exercise and Physical Activity on Weight Loss and Maintenance. *Prog Cardiovasc Dis.* 2018 Jul-Aug;61(2):206-213.
16. Takai, Y. *et al.* Effects of body mass-based squat training in adolescent boy. *J. Sport. Sci. Med.* 2013; 12:60–65.
17. Martin, A., Saunders, D. H., Shenkin, S. D. & Sproule, J. Lifestyle intervention for improving school achievement in overweight or obese children and adolescents. *Cochrane Database Syst. Rev.* 2014.
18. Sarmiento, O. L., Lemoine, P. & Gonzalez, S. A. Relationships between active school transport and adiposity indicators in school-age children from low-, middle- and high-income countries. *Int. J. Obes. Suppl.* 2015;5: S107–S114.
19. Duncan, S. *et al.* Active transport, physical activity, and distance between home and school in children and adolescents. *J. Phys. Act. Heal.* 2016;13: 447–453.
20. Anggraeni, L., Purnamadewi, Y. L. & Sari, H. P. Analisis Pilihan Moda Transportasi Masyarakat di Kota Bogor. (2019). Thesis IPB. Available at [repository.ipb.ac.id/handle/123456789/97851](http://repository.ipb.ac.id/handle/123456789/97851)
21. Sirard, J. R., Riner, W. F., McIver, K. L. & Pate, R. R. Physical activity and active commuting to elementary school. *Med. Sci. Sports Exerc.* 2005;37:2062–2069.
22. Brown, V., Moodie, M., Mantilla Herrera, A. M., Veerman, J. L., & Carter, R. Active transport and obesity prevention - A transportation sector obesity impact scoping review and assessment for Melbourne, Australia. *Prev. medicine.* 2017, 99: 49–66.
23. Dinas Pendidikan Dasar dan Menengah Kabupaten Bantul. *Profil SMA dan SMK Tahun 2016*. 2016. Available at <http://repository.kemdikbud.go.id/18468/1/SMA%20dari%20Masa%20ke%20Masa.pdf> downloaded 17<sup>th</sup> February 2017
24. Lemeshow S. Adequacy of Sample Size in Health Studies. 1990.WHO
25. Lindström, M. Means of transportation to work and overweight and obesity: A population-based study in southern Sweden. *Prev. Med. (Baltim)*. 2008; 46: 22–28.
26. Menteri Kesehatan RI. Peraturan Menteri Kesehatan Republik Indonesia Nomor 2 Tahun 2020 tentang Standar Antropometri Anak. 2010. Availabel at <https://peraturan.bpk.go.id/Home/Details/152505/permenkes-no-2-tahun-2020> downloaded on 6<sup>th</sup> June 2021
27. Bundy, D. A. P. *et al.* Investment in child and adolescent health and development: key messages from Disease Control Priorities, 3rd Edition. *Lancet.* 2017;0:2423–2478 .
28. Hendricks, C., Murdaugh, C., & Pender, N. The Adolescent Lifestyle Profile: development and psychometric characteristics. *J. Natl. Black Nurses' Assoc. JNBNA*, 2006;17: 1–5 .
29. Todd, A. S., Street, S. J., Ziviani, J., Byrne, N. M. & Hills, A. P. Overweight and obese adolescent girls: The importance of promoting sensible eating and activity behaviors from the start of the adolescent period. *Int. J. Environ. Res. Public Health* 2015;12: 2306–2329
30. Badan Pusat Statistik. Jumlah dan Distribusi Penduduk. 2020.
31. Hahn RA, Truman BI. Education Improves Public Health and Promotes Health Equity. *Int J*

- Health Serv. 2015;45(4):657-78.
32. Zajacova A, Lawrence EM. The Relationship Between Education and Health: Reducing Disparities Through a Contextual Approach. *Annu Rev Public Health*. 2018 Apr 1;39:273-289.
  33. Rojas-Rueda, D. *et al*. Health impacts of active transportation in Europe. *PLoS One* 2016;11: 1–14.
  34. Strasser, B. Physical activity in obesity and metabolic syndrome. *Ann. N. Y. Acad. Sci*. 2013; 1281: 141–159
  35. Denstel, K. D. *et al*. Active school transport and weekday physical activity in 9–11-year-old children from 12 countries. *Int. J. Obes. Suppl*. 2015;5: S100–S106

**Table 1. Study Subject’s Characteristics**

Characteristics	n	%
Age		
15	2	0.8
16	117	49.2
17	117	49.2
18	2	0.2
Father’s education		
Primary	76	31.9
Middle	93	39.1
Tertiary	69	29.0
Mother’s education		
Primary	90	37.9
Middle	89	37.4
Tertiary	59	24.8
Father’s Occupation		
Farmers	79	33.2
Private workers	95	39.9

Characteristics	n	%
Civil servant	36	15.1
Others	28	11.8
Mother's Occupation		
Housewife	116	48.7
Farmers	41	17.2
Private workers	49	20.6
Civil servant	22	9.2
Others	10	4.2

**Table 2. Obesity prevalence, and transportation mode and duration**

Characteristics	n	%
Obesity		
Yes	44	18.8
No	194	81.2
Transportation Mode		
Active	112	47.5
Passive	126	52.5
Duration of transportation status		
Passive		
> 15 minutes	57	45.2
≤ 15 minutes	69	54.8
Active		
> 15 minutes	48	42.9
≤ 15 minutes	64	57.1

Table 3. Correlation analysis on transportation mode with obesity in adolescent

	Obese		Non-obese		p-value	OR (CI 95%)
Mode	n	%	n	%		
Active	14	30.9	98	55.2	0.001	1
Passive	30	69.1	96	49.5		5.6 (1.7 – 8.5)
Duration						
> 15 minutes	15	68.2	42	42.0	0.027	1
≤ 15 minutes	7	31.8	62	58.0		2.5 (1.1-5.9 )

**Comment [MOU20]:** OR selalu memiliki nilai Reference atau 1. Tolong tuliskan referencenya di tiap variable. Dan lazimnya, nilai reference itu di letakkan di atas.

Sudah diperbaiki

**Comment [MOU21]:** Yang mana reference nya? Active atau passive? Sudah diperbaiki

**Comment [MOU22]:** Yang mana reference nya? < 15 atau > 15? Sudah diperbaiki